
 

 
101 West Beach Drive • Panama City, FL 32401 

850.215.1700 • DestinationPanamaCity.com 

 

 

DESTINATION PANAMA CITY  

REGULARLY SCHEDULED QUARTERLY MEETING 

October 12, 2021 

9:00AM (immediately following the City of Panama City Commissioner Meetings) 

 
1) Roll Call 

2) Approval of Minutes – July 27. 2021 

3) Acceptance of TDT Revenue Reports – Collections thru August 2021 

4) Financial Status Reports period ending August 31, 2021 

5) Presentation: Robin Malpass, St Andrews School 

6) Huddle Group - Sports Tourism Proposal 

7) CEO Annual Evaluation  

8) CEO Update 

a) Visitor’s Center Update  

b) Near Shore Artificial Reef 

c) Marketing & Public Relations Update 

d) Visitors Center Update 

e) Honor’s Best Documentary 

f) Events Update 

i) Oktoberfest 

ii) Downtown After Dark 

9) Adjournment 



 
Approve Minutes 7/27/2021 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
10/12/2021 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to Accept Minutes for September 27, 2021 as presented. 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 

      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
Minutes for September 27, 2021 are attached for consideration of approval.  
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

101 West Beach Drive • Panama City, FL 32401 
850.215.1700 • DestinationPanamaCity.com 

 
 

DESTINATION PANAMA CITY  
REGULARLY SCHEDULED QUARTERLY MEETING 

July 27, 2021 
9:00AM (immediately following the City of Panama City Commissioner Meetings) 

 
1) Roll Call – CEO Vigil called the roll. Chairman Jennine Brown and Board Members Nirav 

Banker, Kenneth Brown, Billy Rader, Josh Street, and Greg Brudnicki were present. 

Board Member Jenna Haligas was absent. 

2) Approval of Minutes – April 27. 2021 

a) Board Member Greg Brudnicki motioned to Approve the Minutes of April 27, 2021 

as presented, seconded by Board Member Billy Rader. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

3) Acceptance of TDT Revenue Reports – Collections thru May 2021 

a) Board Member Greg Brudnicki motioned to Accept the TDT Revenue Reports as 

presented, seconded by Board Member Nirav Banker. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

4) Financial Status Reports period ending April 30, 2021 

a) Board Member Greg Brudnicki motioned to accept the Financial Status Reports for 

period ending April 30, 2021 as presented, seconded by Board Member Nirav 

Banker. The motion passed unanimously.  

5) Personnel Policy Manual 

a)  Juneteenth Paid Holiday – CEO Vigil requested the Board amend the Personnel 

Policy Manual to recognize Juneteenth as a paid holiday on June 19th of every year 

going forward.  Board Member Greg Brudnicki motioned to approve the inclusion of 

the new federal holiday as requested, seconded by Board Member Kenneth Brown. 

The motion passed unanimously.  

b) Employee Civic Memberships – CEO Vigil explained that upon her hiring a former 

she was directed to join the Rotary Club and the Lions Club. For the last six years the 

membership dues to the civic clubs were paid by DPC and she also required her staff 

to participate in civic organizations to build stronger community relationships. 



 
 

101 West Beach Drive • Panama City, FL 32401 
850.215.1700 • DestinationPanamaCity.com 

Recently it was noted the Personnel Policy Manual did not address the payment of 

civic / community organizations dues on behalf of employees. CEO Vigil requested a 

paragraph authorizing the CEO to make the determination as to whether or not civic 

/ community organizations were beneficial to the organization be added to the 

Personnel Policy Manual. Board Member Rader stated it was extremely important 

for community relations to include the language and motioned to adopt the 

language as presented. Board Member Greg Brudnicki stated he also endorsed 

active membership is civic / community organizations. Board Member Nirav Banker 

agreed as to the importance of relationship building and seconded the motion. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

6) FY21Budget Amendment  

a) CEO Vigil explained the Cash Carry Forward of unused prior year funds and 

unanticipated revenue that was recognized in the annual audit of the Bay County 

Board of Commissioners totaling $1,653,931. The original FY21 budget only 

recognized $986,400. Although the additional $667,531 is immediately available, 

CEO Vigil requested that only $301,812 be recognized in the FY21 Amended Budget 

and $365,719 be recognized in the FY22 Budget.   Board Member Greg Brudnicki 

motioned to approve the FY21 Amended Budget incorporating the $301,812 into 

the current fiscal year, seconded by Board Member Billy Rader. The motion passed 

unanimously.  

7) FY21 Employee Merit Reconsideration 

a) In the July 2020 budget meeting, CEO Vigil requested the Board hold off on 

awarding any merit increases or bonuses until after the May 2021 tourist 

development tax collections were realized to ensure the local economy withstood 

the Covid-19 pandemic. CEO Vigil acknowledged the current financial status of the 

organization after the recording of the May 2021 TDT revenue as excellent. DPC had 

met the FY21 Annual Anticipated Revenue and exceeded that by almost $100,000 

with a full quarter of the year remaining for revenue generation.   CEO Vigil stated 

she felt comfortable asking the Board to consider a 10% bonus for full time staff 

members (Jennifer Vigil & Lacey Kennedy).  Board Chairman Jennine Brown 



 
 

101 West Beach Drive • Panama City, FL 32401 
850.215.1700 • DestinationPanamaCity.com 

concurred citing various accomplishments of the staff during FY20 and FY21.  

Chairman Brown motioned to authorize a one-time bonus of 10% to Jennifer Vigil 

and Lacey Kennedy for the FY21 that was deferred last July. The motion was 

seconded by Board Josh Street and passed unanimously.  

8) CEO Evaluation Committee  

a) Chairman Jennine Brown motioned that she, Board Member Billy Rader, and Board 

Member Nirav Banker serve as the CEO Evaluation Committee for performance 

review and consideration of merit increase for FY22 budget year.  Board Member 

Nirav Banker seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  

9) FY22 Proposed Budget –  

a) CEO Vigil presented the FY22 Proposed Budget, acknowledging the $365,719 cash 

carry forward that was split between FY21 and FY22,  identified major changes to 

the budget, and offered to answer any questions. Board Member Billy Rader 

motioned to approve the FY22 Proposed Budget as presented. Board Member 

Kenneth Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

10)  FY22 Program of Work 

a) CEO Vigil presented the FY22 Program of Work and offered to answer any questions 

related the efforts of the organization. Board Member Greg Brudnicki motioned to 

approve the FY22 Program of Work, seconded by Board Member Kenneth Brown. 

The motion passed unanimously.  

11)  Destination Panama City Visitor’s Center Security Discussion  

a) CEO Vigil explained the current situation at the Visitor’s Center and acknowledged 

the direction given by Chairman Jennine Brown to hire private security. CEO Vigil 

stated the current situation was a temporary solution and could not be sustained 

indefinitely due to costs. Board Member Brudnicki stated DPC should not have to be 

paying for security, that the issues needed to be handled. Board Member Josh Street 

echoed the opinion that an alternate solution needed to be sought.  CEO Vigil stated 

at the moment she was only asking the Board to ratify the prior month’s security 

expenditure and to authorize her 30 additional days to find a suitable solution. 



 
 

101 West Beach Drive • Panama City, FL 32401 
850.215.1700 • DestinationPanamaCity.com 

Board Member Greg Brudnicki motioned to approve the request, seconded by Board 

Member Nirav Banker. The motion passed unanimously.  

12)  CEO Update 

a) Visitor’s Center Update  

b) The documentary Honor’s Best would be shown in a private cast and crew screening 

at the Visitor’s Center on August 4, 2021 at 7:00PM 

c) Near Shore Artificial Reef 

d) Marketing & Public Relations Update 

e) Visitors Center Update 

f) Events Update 

i) July 4, 2021 

ii) Grand Opening & Ribbon Cutting, August 6, 2021 

iii) Oktoberfest, September 25, 2021 

iv) Downtown After Dark, October 16, 2021 

13) The meeting was adjourned at 10:03 a.m. 



 
Acceptance of TDT Revenue 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
10/12/2021 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to Accept TDT Revenue Reports for as presented. 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 

      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
Clerk of Court TDT division collects revenue and provides the attached reports. 
 
 
 
 

 



% change FY21 FY20 % change FY19 % change FY18 % change FY17 % change FY16 % change FY15

5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

OCT 3.96% 128,768.79          131.67% 123,861.73           -47.21% 53,465.19             -10.17% 101,281.73           19.23% 112,754.00         94,571.27        -                     

NOV 10.90% 101,630.73          123.84% 91,643.79             -41.31% 40,942.54             -4.86% 69,765.50             11.00% 73,327.00           66,059.88        -                     

DEC -4.60% 78,649.26           118.73% 82,443.03             -45.66% 37,691.14             5.63% 69,355.65             5.76% 65,657.00           62,079.90        -                     

JAN -1.34% 78,908.76           57.93% 79,980.05             -23.33% 50,642.49             -6.09% 66,053.88             -10.00% 70,339.00           23.92% 78,155.39        63,069.50           

FEB 17.96% 87,288.10           23.55% 73,996.73             -27.20% 59,891.56             -3.94% 82,266.95             -7.72% 85,637.00           5.64% 92,804.00        87,845.52           

MAR 119.91% 195,307.74          10.47% 88,811.23             -45.62% 80,393.83             -4.76% 147,842.53           -2.82% 155,229.00         -20.33% 159,731.00      200,483.24         

APR 231.81% 219,349.92          -41.19% 66,107.75             -24.44% 112,406.97           -0.32% 148,755.72           -2.61% 149,230.00         17.10% 153,227.00      130,848.26         

MAY 173.75% 280,541.00          -26.75% 102,481.39           -12.71% 139,913.92           0.48% 160,287.99           4.75% 159,517.00         4.15% 152,286.00      146,220.71         

JUN 16.62% 326,761.40          49.20% 280,201.96           -21.88% 187,808.86           17.94% 240,405.16           -3.22% 203,829.00         4.32% 210,619.00      201,906.34         

JUL 146.19% 434,980.46          -23.78% 176,685.02           -15.73% 231,805.34           4.60% 275,072.33           -1.10% 262,982.00         11.66% 265,911.00      238,143.02         

AUG 57.29% 197,980.46          -20.35% 125,871.61           19.03% 158,028.14           7.51% 132,766.82           14.11% 123,488.00         -8.34% 108,223.00      118,070.60         

SEP 6.24% 132,963.41           7.07% 125,158.45           2.78% 116,889.75           14.31% 113,733.00         3.74% 99,494.00        95,907.58           

TOTAL 64.86% 2,130,166.62       11.49% 1,425,047.70        -20.65% 1,278,148.43        2.22% 1,610,744.01        2.11% 1,575,722$             20.32% 1,543,161$          1,282,495$             

2.96%

Anticipated FY21 1,071,040.00       

1,059,126.62           

Over Anticipated Revenue 98.89%

TDT Monthly Analysis



 
Approval of Financial Status 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

10/12/2021 

2. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approve Financial Reports for period endingAugust 31, 2021 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 

      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
Accounting staff has prepared the Financial reports. Staff request approval on financials as presented. 
 
 
 

 



����������	�
�	����	������
�� ��������																									�����
��	������� ���� �!																											"���#$
�	%	&��
���� !�''!																																����(�
�	&��	�#�)�$��� *!�!'!+																														��
��������
	�
	#��,���	-	.(	/�������	�
�� ��!' ���0																								12�34	3����� ����������																						5637646�6��	389	:��	;2�6�628<���������=�����
��	#�>��� -�																																		.���	#�>��� 0���� 																													?���	������	���������� !'���0																													@#����� �  �   																											12�34	4637646�6�� �����'0																											.�	#������
=A8B���B6C��9	8��	D2�6�628 ��' !� ��																								12�34	4637646�6��	389	8��	D2�6�628 ����������																						EFGHI	HJKFLMK	NHIHGOMP	QHR	SHTR	UTVQ	FGLMTFQ	UFGHGOFHI	TMWVTLPX

YGLMTFQ	UFGHGOFHI	TMWVTLFGZ[	UVT	FGLMTGHI	QHGHZMQMGL	JPM	VGIR;383\3	]6�̂	]2\\_86�̂	̀�a�42D\�8�	]2_8C64b	c8Cde�3��\�8�	2f	:��	;2�6�628b	ghigjYklj�_m_��	nob	pqpo

rstu	v	wx	y



���������	�
�� �	�
������������ �����������	�
��� ����������	�����������������
�������������� �!�	�� ���!�!������� "#$%"#$&$'��������������� "#$%"#$&$'���������������� (#$)&#*%&'������������������ �!�	�� �!��� �+��,����-����	� "#$$$#$$$����������������� (..#("(����������������������� "#(..#("(������������������� ��������������������������������-����	����/�����0� ������������������������������� "$#1$$�������������������������� "$#1$$������������������������ ��������������������������������������00�
������	��/!�!�! ������������������������������� ��������������������������������� �������������������������������� ��������������������������������������0����
����������� (#$%"#$&$����������������� ().#."(����������������������� (#*1)#.2(������������������� (#$)&#*%&�������������������30��������	����������4������������0�
 ������������������������������� *#$$$���������������������������� *#$$$��������������������������� &$"������������������������������30��������	 ������������������������������� �������������������������������� .�����������������������������������5�����6���7������� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� "#1(*���������������������������8�����70�������	� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� %1#22"����������������������������7������ ������������������������������� �������������������������������� *#(*2���������������������������3���7���0����� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� ��������������������������������5������0�9������ ������������������������������� �������������������������������� ���������������������������������������0��������	 ������������������������������� *#$$$���������������������������� *#$$$��������������������������� ."#.".�������������������������:;<=>��������� (#$%"#$&$����������������� *$"#."(����������������������� (#*%(#.2(������������������� (#"%1#")(�������������������?@A������/����������0�� (%2#()(��������������������� B&$#$$$C������������������������ (*2#()(���������������������� (".#""1����������������������D�����0�
��E����������/��F�0�����8���0�� "$#$$$����������������������� "$#$$$�������������������������� ($#$$$������������������������ "&#%&1�����������������������������/��F�0�����8���0������ ������������������������������� �������������������������������� "$#&($���������������������������������	��0�
�G��	�0�0�
 ("#$$$����������������������� (#2$$���������������������������� (*#2$$������������������������ (*#(($�����������������������������D�7���!�������	���8�� "#$$$������������������������� "#$$$��������������������������� "#).)��������������������������������D�7���!�������	���8����	� "(.#.2$��������������������� "(.#.2$���������������������� )&#(2%����������������������������������������/����0�� "$#$$$����������������������� "$#$$$������������������������ (#%%*��������������������������������H�����FF��������5E���� 2#$$$������������������������� B2#$$$C��������������������������� �������������������������������� �������������������������������������!���	�0���0���8���0�� %#.$$������������������������� %#.$$��������������������������� 2#$1.��������������������������������+��0
7��G�/���
��8���0�� 2#$$$������������������������� 2#$$$��������������������������� (%*�����������������������������������I�0�0� �8���0�� *#$$$������������������������� (#2$$���������������������������� 2#2$$��������������������������� 1#(1*��������������������������������-������G�J��� "$#$$$����������������������� "$#$$$�������������������������� ($#$$$������������������������ ("#).%�������������������������������	����� "$#$$$����������������������� "$#$$$������������������������ "*#2"1�����������������������������-���0��G�3�0���������8�� 2#$$$������������������������� 2#$$$��������������������������� *#11(��������������������������������/�0��0�
�G��0��0�
 "$#$$$����������������������� "$#$$$������������������������ 1#*""��������������������������������/�����0��������0�0�0� (&$#*&)��������������������� *&$#$$$����������������������� 2.$#*&)���������������������� *)"#&))���������������������������D�7���!	������!7��
� "$#$$$����������������������� "$#$$$�������������������������� ($#$$$������������������������ (1#(.*�����������������������������DFF0���8	���0� "#$$$������������������������� "#$$$��������������������������� "#.&1��������������������������������D�����0�
�8	���0� "(#$$$����������������������� "(#$$$������������������������ "%#%%1��������������������������������9�/	6�0���0���3��6��70� "&#12$����������������������� "$#$$$�������������������������� (&#12$������������������������ ")#)"(��������������������������������0�0�
 (#2$$������������������������� (#2$$��������������������������� (#*(.��������������������������������D�����0�����-������+���!���0�
��� (..#2))��������������������� B(.$#$$$C���������������������� .#2))��������������������������� ��������������������������������!��0����D	��� �������	0��0�
 "#$$$#$$$����������������� (&"#."(����������������������� "#(&"#."(������������������� %*#1.(�����������������������������3��70��� �G�5K	0����� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� ��������������������������������:;<=>�?@A����� (#$%"#$&$����������������� *$"#."(����������������������� (#*%(#.2(������������������� )22#)(%����������������������L�<�MN=�O��P����<�A;�P<P;� �'��������������������������� �'������������������������������ �'����������������������������� "#(($#(12'����������������L�<�A;�P<P;�QR�OP��P�O�;S�T�=U *."#.((����������������������L�<�A;�P<P;�Q��V�;S�T�=U "#1$(#$.%'����������������WXYZ[�Z\]X̂_]�̀Z[ZYa_b�cZd�eZfd�gfhc�XŶ_fXc�gXYZYaXZ[�f_ihf̂bj

kŶ_fXc�gXYZYaXZ[�f_ihf̂XYlm�ghf�XŶ_fYZ[�cZYZl_c_Ŷ�\b_�hY[dn=�=o=�pP<T�p;oo��P<T�q���>;Ao��<�p;��MP>r�s�Mtu<=<�o��<�;S���������r�?@A�����r�=�V�pN=�O���P��L�<�n;�P<P;��vwxvykz{y|;U�<N��A�UP;V���V�V�}�O��<�~�r�����

�����������



 
Approve Minutes 7/27/2021 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
10/12/2021 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Board Ratify CEO Vigil’s decision to engage Robin Malpass & Associates for proposal on recommended 
cultural tourism for St. Andrews School.  
 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 

      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
The City of Panama City recently entered into a long-term lease with Bay County Commission for the St. 
Andrews School.  The facility was previously a Bay District School property. The school is on the National 
Historic Landmark registry and was acquired by Bay County with tourism development tax dollars.  
 
The long-term lease agreement between Bay County and the City of Panama City requires the facility be 
utilized within the limits of the tourist development tax with which it was acquired. (Florida Statute 125.0104). 
 
Knowing the St. Andrews School needed to be utilized within the limits of Florida Statute 125.0104 and 
recognizing what an asset the facility can be as a cultural tourism amenity, CEO Vigil engaged Robin Malpass 
& Associates and tasked them with an expedited study regarding the highest and best use of the facility as a  
cultural tourism venue / attraction in Panama City.  
 
Robin Malpass was selected because she is uniquely qualified both in her familiarity with Panama City and her 
work as a niche cultural tourism marketing professional.  
 
 
Attached is the proposal from Robin Malpass; the Board should ratify CEO Vigil’s execution of the contract and 
also allow Ms. Malpass to present her preliminary findings and offer her preliminary recommendations.  
 
 
 
 

 







� ���������	
��������������������������������������������������������������� �!���  �������������"����#$%�&$&'�����(�����)*��!�)������(����+�����������%�����,$,�����-�.��������	����%�������/0$1������"�%�-�2$2''��3#'&4�,$15$&&1��!�)��6��)�� ��(������ ��� � �7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777������������������89:9;<=�>9?<@@9ABCDE<AF�G<>�C�H>9CDE:9�I<J>EF@�KJL�G<>�89FDEACDE<A�MCAC@C�HEDN�CAB�OCN�H<JADN�LN�>9E@CPEAEAP�DQ9�QEFD<>E?�=><=9>DN�CAB�P><JABF�<G�DQ9�G<>@9>�RDS�TAB>9UF�R?Q<<;S���VWX�YZ[\]̂_[�̀abẐcde��YZ[\]̂_[�̀abẐcd�̂c�\�cbfghaZd�ah�Ybi]bZ\i�̀abẐcd�]W\]�j\c�̂k]Zalbm[l�̂k�nooo�fX�pZ[q�r̂mW\Zlc�\kl�YẐcŝk�r\Xdaklt�̀W[X�l[ĥk[l�̂]�\c�ùabẐcd�jŴmW�ahh[Zc�_̂ĉ]aZc�]W[�assaZ]bk̂]X�]a�l[_[ias�]W[̂Z�mZ[\]̂_[�sa][k]̂\i�]WZabqW�\m]̂_[�s\Z]̂m̂s\]̂ak�̂k�[vs[Ẑ[km[c�jŴmW�\Z[�mW\Z\m][Ẑc]̂m�ah�]W[�l[c]̂k\]̂aktw���xk�nooyz�{|}~Y��Z[maqk̂�[l�]Ŵc�k[j�haZd�ah�]abẐcd�fX�i\bkmŴkq�]W[�YZ[\]̂_[�Ŷ]̂[c�|[]jaZ�t��̀al\Xz�]Ŵc�̂c�\�]WẐ_̂kq�mbi]bZ\i�]abẐcd�c[qd[k]�]W\]�m\k�f[�habkl�\Zabkl�]W[�jaZilt��̀W[�~]t��klZ[jc�~mWaai�sZas[Z]X�sZa_̂l[c�\k�assaZ]bk̂]X�haZ��[c]̂k\]̂ak��\k\d\�Ŷ]X�]a�daZ[�hbiiX�[kq\q[�̂k�]Ŵc�k[j�]abẐcd�d\Z�[]�c[qd[k]t��������(�����!���  ���������������������8>E:9�EA?>9CF9B�:EFEDCDE<A�D<�DQ9�B9FDEACDE<A���F=9?EGE?C;;N�LN�?J;DJ>C;�D<J>EFDF��CF�DQ9N�>9=>9F9AD�C�B9@<P>C=QE?�DQCD�FDCNF�;<AP9>�CAB�F=9ABF�@<>9S���������C�E@E�9�?J;DJ>C;�9�=9>E9A?9F�DQCD�DQ9�;<?C;�?<@@JAEDN�CAB�:EFED<>F�?CA�=C>DE?E=CD9�EA�9�JC;;NS�����A?;JB9�>9:9AJ9�<==<>DJAEDE9F�G<>�DQ9�H>9CDE:9�I<J>EF@�KJL�D<�L9�F9;G�FJ==<>DEAPS�������<FD9>�9?<A<@E?�<==<>DJAEDE9F�G<>�;<?C;�LJFEA9FF9F��?J;DJ>C;�D<J>EFDF��CAB�?>9CDE:9�D<J>EF@S�����



��������	
��������������������������������������������������� ��������!��"#$%�&������'��(�)�����������(��!��!���������!�� ���������� �*�����������&������'��(+��)!������(������������!���� ��!��&������'��(����,!-��!����.���+�/���������������0���������� �������������������+���*�����������&������'��(�����!����!���00�������(�����������������������������������������00����������!���������������������������+�/������+���/�'��������)�������1�-�����������������������������������0������0��������������������������������20��������������������(��!���������,�������!�'��������)������+����3��4���5��6��7�-���8��0����9�/�����������������������!���00�����������������������������0��������!����������,����0�������!������������������������,����:�!����������!��!������������������ �����-���!��,������ �����!������������ ����������+���/����;���!���� ��!��"#$%�&������'��(�)�����������(���������!�� ������,���(�� �������� ���*�����������&������'��(.�7�-���8��0����9�/����������!����� ����������� �������������:������,���!�����������-������������:����!����������������������������������0���������������.�0��0��� ���0��<�������������������+���=4�������>>��?�@����������� ��2�����,� �����������?�A����� (�����A������������:�!��������?�A����� (���������!���������������0��������?�7������!�����������������!�����������������������������B �����������?�&����������������������� ��� ���-��:��?�7���������������������������������(�?�&������� �����������������������=CD�5C���E���F�DG5��C������0���-���$�H�I���-���$%.�"#"$���?�I������������ � ����������H���0���-���$;"���?�A����� (������������������:�!�����������������������0�������� ����!������������H���0��$;$#���?�7�-���8��0����9�/��������������*�����������&������'��(���0������������������������������J�!���0����-��K�����������������!�������� ��������������������0��,�����H���0��$L;L#���?�&���������� ������������������;�I���$�H�M���?�7����������������������H�I���N;$O���?�&������� ���������������������H�I���$%�����







 
Approve Minutes 7/27/2021 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
10/12/2021 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Board authorize CEO Vigil to engage Huddle Group for a sports tourism study. 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 

      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
The City of Panama City has acquired 19(+/-) acres of land for a future City Park on the south side of CR 390 
across from the SweetBay residential development. (See attached map) 
 
Recognizing the importance of outdoor recreation, sports tourism, and currently available federal grants, CEO 
Vigil reached out to Huddle Group and requested a proposal for Sports tourism specifically related to the 
feasibility of certain sports at the CR 390 location. The findings from this report will help CEO Vigil in preparing 
future marketing campaigns and better assist her in recruiting sporting events to the City. Likewise, the report 
will provide information needed by the City to complete federal grant applications.  
 
The Huddle Group is a current vendor to Destination Panama City providing the Sports Index Application a 
recreation tourism recruitment tool.  
 
The Huddle Group has submitted the attached proposal for consideration. Upon approval, work would 
commence immediately. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



o 407 494 1299
f 408 317 9527

741 front street, suite 320 
celebration, FL 34747

www.placealliance.com
© PLACE Alliance 2019. All rights reserved.

0’                  50’                100’200'0' 400'

SWEETBAY ::  390 SOUTH RESERVE
October 1st, 2019 



 

 

 

 
0 

 

 

 

 

         

   

SEPTEMBER 28, 2021 

SPORTS TOURISM STRATEGIC 
PLANNING PROPOSAL 

 
DESTINATION PANAMA CITY 

POWERED BY THE HUDDLEUP GROUP 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

1 

Jennifer Vigil                            September 28, 2021 
Destination Panama City 
101 West Palm Beach Drive 
Panama City, FL 32401 
 
Dear Jennifer, 
 
Thank you for taking the time to talk with us about this critical project for Destination Panama City.  It is 
great to see that sports tourism is an important factor in shaping the future of your community.  As someone 
who has personally led award winning non-profit sports organizations and also helped our clients build and 
grow their community impact, I’m excited for the opportunity you have ahead of you.  From our past efforts 
on similar projects, we are confident we can deliver a comprehensive analysis of the proposed sports project 
that will enable Destination Panama City (“DPC”) to bring the project to fruition.  Our proven process will 
help grow the region’s tourism impact through sports, while at the same time enhancing the level of 
community engagement in the process. 
 
Enclosed is a proposal to forge a partnership between DPC, and the Huddle Up Group, LLC (“Consultant”).  
The scope of work includes a comprehensive effort in both planning and execution.  While the enclosed 
timeline is flexible, we have used an October start date and a November completion date to illustrate a 
potential project schedule.  Our proven process focuses on three key elements for success: 
 
1. Community Engagement – We interview key stakeholder groups via phone and in person, to garner 

their input throughout the process.  We believe collaboration and transparency are keys for long-term 
success.  These interviews will include local leaders, event rights holders, and potential partners that 
may not be engaged in your sports tourism efforts today. 

 
2. Sustainability – In every project, our goal is to build a plan that can leverage existing assets (funding, 

partnerships, and community-wide leadership) and to identify new resources to sustain your long-range 
sports tourism vision.  We want to work with DPC to put in place a game plan that can, and will, work 
over time.   

 
3. Execution – Our end deliverable will not only include a playbook for success but will also outline action 

items to move forward.  The plan will offer next steps for the DPC team to execute tomorrow, and also 
those that will be needed over time.    

 
As the sole-proprietor of the Sports Tourism IndexTM, a first-of-its kind tool developed to help destinations 
evaluate their position in the sports tourism market, we will use the trademarked tool to determine the 
destination’s strengths, competitive set, and areas of opportunity. In addition, DPC will have access to the 
Consultant’s industry resource library.  
 
Very few people have our level of experience in building and growing sustainable sports tourism programs.  
We would love to work with you on this important project for Destination Panama City.  Thank you for 
your consideration of our proposal.  
 
Yours in Sport,  

 
Jon Schmieder, Founder + CEO 
Huddle Up Group, LLC 



 

 

 

 

 
 

2 

About the Huddle Up Group, LLC 
 
Founded in 2012 as a sports tourism industry consulting company, our team has a successful track 
record of leading sports organizations through strategic growth and increased community 
collaboration.  We have extensive experience in building cohesive organizations and external 
relationships while working with volunteer boards, donors, elected officials, hospitality 
community leaders, and various corporate partners. 
 
From starting as athletes and coaches to becoming leading sports industry professionals, a major 
differentiator for the Huddle Up Group is our team’s experience in the sports tourism and events 
trenches.  
 
We have personally led or worked on: 

 
• Award winning sports commissions 
• Multiple Olympic Games 
• Youth tournaments 
• Facility development 
• National championship management 

 
• Final Fours 
• All-Star Games 
• New event creation 
• Capital campaigns/fundraising 
• College Bowl Games 

 
These well-rounded experiences lend themselves to a diverse view of sports organization development 
projects.  This front-line experience is the primary reason we feel the Huddle Up Group is the best team 
to partner with you and your stakeholders on this strategic planning effort. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

3 

The Huddle Up Group employs six (6) full-time staff members and multiple contract employees. 
Below is a brief bio of each team member that will contribute to the project: 

 
 

JON SCHMIEDER, FOUNDER + CEO 
Huddle Up Group, LLC | Phoenix, Arizona 

 
Jon has 25 years of direct experience in the sports tourism industry having held the 

top role with three different sports commissions: Phoenix, Tulsa, and Denver.  
Schmieder brings a wealth of experience in sports tourism and economic development 

having also served in lead staff positions for the Senior Olympic Games and Pop Warner 
Football and Cheerleading.  Schmieder twice served as Chairman of the National Association of Sports 
Commissions (NASC) and was on the organization’s Executive Committee for six years.  While Schmieder 
served as the President of the Phoenix Regional Sports Commission, the NASC chose the organization as 
the 2012 Large Market Sports Commission of the Year.   
 
Schmieder was named the 2012 CEO of the Year by the Phoenix Chapter of the Organization of Non-Profit 
Executives.  In 2016, Connect Sports honored Schmieder as an industry “Game Changer”. 
 
He holds a bachelor’s degree in marketing from the University of Arizona.  He also holds a master’s degree 
in higher education leadership from Northern Arizona University. 
 
Unique Fact: Schmieder is one of only three, 2-time Chairmen of the NASC. 
 

 
CAROLINE ALLMAN, PRINCIPAL 
Huddle Up Group, LLC | Knoxville, TN 

 
Caroline's career experience includes sports management roles across collegiate, 
professional, and the sports tourism industry. Caroline started her career working for 

the University of Tennessee in event management and athletic administration enabling 
events across 14 sports and exploring strategic initiatives. While at Tennessee, Caroline 

assisted in the development and execution of the Pilot Flying J Battle at Bristol, the world's largest football 
game in history.  
 
Caroline also worked for the Seattle Sports Commission focused on acquiring and hosting major events. 
She most recently worked in marketing for the Seattle Seahawks focused on market research, data analytics, 
and the NFL Voice of the Fan.  
 
Caroline holds a Bachelor of Education from the University of Tennessee and a Master of Business 
Administration from Seattle University.  
 
Unique Facts: Caroline earned two-time Academic All-American honors as a Lady Volunteer soccer player 
at the University of Tennessee prior to playing professionally in the French Division 1 Feminine. 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

4 

DEAN POLK  
DIRECTOR | HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA  
 
Polk’s experience in the sports industry began while serving in various game-day 
roles within the athletic department while a student at West Virginia University. It 
was during this time that he also interned for the Greater Morgantown CVB. Upon 
graduating, Polk continued his work within the sports tourism industry, working at 
ESPN Wide World of Sports and for USA Baseball.  

 
Prior to joining HUG, Polk spent the last few years as a business development leader for the Hershey   
Harrisburg Sports and Events Authority. Polk has a strong background in event solicitation and   
execution and earned his CSEE certification from SportsETA.  
 
Polk holds a bachelor’s degree in Sport Management from West Virginia University. He also earned his   
MBA and a master’s degree in Sport Management from West Virginia University. 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 

 

 
 

5 

Partner Portfolio 
 
The Huddle Up Group has worked with numerous communities and sports organizations across the United 
States. Our clients and partners include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
DMOs 

     Arlington CVB 
     Bermuda Run (NC) 
     Birmingham CVB 
     Boulder CVB 
     Branson CVB 
     Bryan-College Station CVB 
     Butler County (OH) 
     Campbell County CVB (WY) 
     City of Auburn (ME) 
     City of Longview (TX) 
     City of Lynchburg (VA) 
     Columbia County (FL) 
     Columbus CVB (IN) 
     Delaware Sports Commission 
     Des Moines CVB 
     Discover Kalamazoo (MI) 
     DuPage County CVB 
     Durham Sports Commission 
     Eau Claire CVB 
     Elizabethtown Tourism and Convention Bureau 
     Evansville Sports Corp 
     Fort Worth CVB 
     Fox Cities CVB 
     Greater Grand Junction Sports Commission 
     Hamilton County Sports Authority 
     Harris County-Houston Sports Authority 
     Jacksonville-Onslow Sports Commission 
 

Las Cruces CVB 
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 
London (KY) Tourism Commission 
Louisville Sports Commission 
Monroe-West Monroe CVB 
Morgantown CVB 
North Platte CVB (NE) 
Oklahoma City CVB 
Peoria CVB (AZ) 
Richmond Region Tourism (VA) 
Springfield Sports Commission (MO) 
Travel Lane County (OR) 
Travel Medford 
Treasure Coast Sports Commission 
Virginia Beach Sports Marketing 
Visit Brookings 
Visit Detroit/Detroit Sports Commission 
Visit Duluth 
Visit Hershey Harrisburg 
Visit Mesa 
Visit Mississippi Gulf Coast 
Visit Norman 
Visit Sacramento 
Visit Tucson 
Visit Tulsa/Tulsa Sports Commission 
Visit Tuscaloosa 
Visit Watertown

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

6 

NGBs/Rights Holders 
Arizona Football Coaches Association 
Association of Chief Executives of Sport (ACES) 
Ohio Basketball 
USA BMX 

 

Additional Partnerships 
Collinson Media & Events 
DMO Proz (formerly Zeitgeist Consulting) 
EventConnect 
Phoenix Sports Women’s Association 
Resonance Consulting 
Safe Football 
Skyhawks Sports 
Sports Facilities Advisory 
Sports Facilities Management 
STEM Sports 
Strider Sports International 
Track Girlz 
Twin Cities Youth Soccer Association (Bermuda Run, NC) 
Veteran Tickets Foundation 

 
Conferences/Media Outlets 

ACES 
Cal Travel 
Connect Sports 
Destinations International 
DMA West 
Florida Sports Foundation 
Georgia Conference on Tourism 
Louisiana Lieutenant Governors Conference on Tourism 
Minnesota Tourism Conference 
NASC Symposium 
North Carolina Tourism 365 
Oklahoma Travel Industry Association Conference 
Southeast Tourism Society 
South Dakota Tourism Conference 
Sports Events Magazine 
Sports Events & Tourism Exchange (South Africa) 
Sports Illinois 
Sports Planners Guide 
S.P.O.R.T.S. Relationship Conference 
Texas Association of CVBs 
Treasure Coast (FL) Sports Tourism Summit 
Upper Midwest CVB Association 
US Sports Congress 
Virginia Conference on Tourism 
Western Association of CVBs 
Wisconsin Tourism Conference 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

7 

Related Project Experience and References      
 

The Huddle Up Group has worked with numerous destinations on venue feasibility studies.  Below are 
several references that relate specifically to long-range visioning projects our team at the Huddle Up 
Group has led. 
 
Fox Cities CVB and Sports Commission (Appleton, WI)  Total Number of Projects – 2 
 

Key Outcomes: 
• Conducted a full facility audit as part of the development of a long-range strategic plan 

for the Sports Commission.   
• Made recommendations for the development of a new indoor venue as well as the 

expansion of an existing outdoor complex, including the identification of a 
funding  source (a bed tax increase) for all projects.  

• Helped identify venue development partners as well as potential third-party 
management companies to facilitate the building and management of these 
new/enhanced facilities.   

• The new facility suggested in this study (the Champions Center) opened in 2019. 
 

Reference:     Matt Ten Haken 
Director of Sports  
Fox Cities CVB 
mtenhaken@foxcities.org 
(920) 734-3358, extension 132 

 
Visit Tulsa/Tulsa Sports Commission (OK)   Total Number of Projects – 2 
 

Key Outcomes: 
• In partnership with USA BMX, negotiated the development of a new International 

BMX Training facility in Tulsa.  The $26 million venue will open in late 2021. 
• Led the staffing search for a new Executive Director for the Tulsa Sports Commission. 
• Conducted a feasibility study for a planned outdoor entertainment center which could 

accommodate a major soccer franchise in the future. 
• The feasibility study included community and external use models, cost to build 

estimates, revenue structures, and a calendar of events for the initial year of operation 
(including an economic impact analysis). 

 
Reference: Ray Hoyt, President 

rayhoyt@visittulsa.com     
(918) 560-0273 

 
Additional Related Projects: 

• Louisville (KY) 
• Fort Worth (TX) 
• Columbia County, Sebring, Treasure Coast (FL)       

mailto:mtenhaken@foxcities.org
mailto:rayhoyt@visittulsa.com


 

 

 

 

 
 

8 

Destination Panama City  (“DPC”) 
Sports Tourism Facility Project  

Approach, Methodology, and Project Schedule 
 
Approach 
 

In all cases, our proven process is used to engage the community in a proactive and inclusive manner.  The 
process outlined below has been especially successful with Destination Marketing Organizations (DMOs), 
sports commissions, cities, counties, and places where multiple stakeholder groups exist.  Community 
alignment with the Parks and Recreation Department, area sports clubs, and other sports related factions 
throughout the area will be crucial to sustain the historically positive work of DPC.  The more entities we 
can engage, the more support the project will generate through the process and any barriers/silos will be 
minimized or eliminated entirely. 
 
Preliminary Scope of Work, Methodology, and Project Schedule 
 

Our proposed scope of work and timeline is outlined below.  The ultimate goal of the project is for our team 
to lead a facility evaluation process to identify, grow, develop and service the community’s sports tourism 
efforts in the Destination Panama City region to ensure continued significant economic impact.  Using our 
proven methodology, the project includes six (6) scheduled deliverables, due at the assigned date noted 
below each stage of the project: 
 

1. Consultant will assist DPC in completing the Sports Tourism IndexTM, a first-of-its kind tool 
developed to help destinations benchmark and evaluate their position in the sports tourism market. 
As the sole-proprietor and developer of the Sports Tourism IndexTM, the Consultant will use the 
trademarked tool to determine the destination’s strengths and areas of opportunity. The Sports 
Tourism IndexTM is the only tool in the industry designed to benchmark an organization’s sports 
tourism presence against regional and national standards. Multiple reports will be produced by the 
Consultant to analyze and discuss with DPC.  

 
(5 hours, delivered by October 1, 2021) 
 

2. Consultant will conduct a complete audit on the current facility concept of DPC with the goal of 
determining the optimal venue size and scope that would most directly benefit the community.  The 
audit will include a review of all previously conducted and relevant research/surveys and related 
projects including the current and potentially new development of the parks and recreation strategic 
plan.  In addition, the audit will include phone interviews with the top 10 key stakeholders and 
online surveys with the remaining stakeholders including but not limited to, the Staff and key board 
members of DPC, city/county/community leaders, parks and recreation, area high schools, privately 
run facilities, program coordinators and venue managers, hospitality community leaders, event 
owners, local clubs, elected officials, corporate executives, and additional targets as defined by DPC.  
As a point of reference, these interviews and surveys normally involve between 20-30 stakeholders 
in total. 
 

(25 hours, delivered by October 30, 2021) 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

9 

3. Consultant will utilize the audit, the virtual evaluation, and national best practices to develop a 
comprehensive venue development strategic plan for DPC.  This plan will include, but may not be 
limited to:  

 

(1) An economic impact analysis of one (1) potential new venue development, including:  A 
professional opinion on the financial/economic impact model for the proposed venue, an 
analysis and recommendations of the revenue model and opportunities for the facility, and a 
commentary on the proposed management model for the facility. 
 
(2) Creation of a “story telling” document that includes the economic impact analysis and 
can be used to generate community support for the project. 
 

(25 hours, delivered by November 15, 2021) 
 

 

4. Consultant will make a final two-hour virtual presentation on the findings and recommendations of 
the study to the members of DPC and its stakeholders, including various city/county/area leadership 
groups, elected officials, the hospitality industry, as well as DPC Staff and board.  The goal of these 
presentations is to formally solicit support and garner feedback on the proposed strategic plan for 
DPC.  This presentation phase includes pre- and post-con meetings with key DPC leadership as well 
as delivery of up to five (5) bound copies of the final written report. 
 

(10 hours, delivered by November 30, 2021) 
 

5. Consultant will facilitate a follow-up call to discuss the implementation of the strategic plan and 
action items going forward.  The Consultant Team will also be available to DPC staff via phone, 
and/or at industry related events to act as a sounding board and to offer execution advice for all 
related questions pertaining to this scope of work for 30 days following the delivery of the 
strategic plan. 
 

(5 hours, delivered by December 30, 2021) 
 

 
  



 

 

 

 

 
 

10 

Project Budget/Fees 
 

Direct Costs 
 

All parts of the project will be conducted virtually and not in person. If DPC would prefer a final in-
person presentation in the DPC market, consultant estimates this will require up to $2,500 in direct 
reimbursable costs, including: 
 

• Round trip airline travel to and from the Destination Panama City area. 
• Rental car and mileage.  
• Incidental travel expenses outside of the Destination Panama City area such as meals, airport 

parking, and airport transfers for the scope of work outlined in this proposal.   
 

The DPC and Consultant Team will make every effort to combine trips the Consultant Team is making to 
cut down on travel cost and time (doing so will allow these costs to be “shared” by other destinations in 
the region).  These direct costs will only be billed for the reimbursement of actual expenses incurred by 
the Consultant Team (no daily per diem).  Consultant fees are inclusive of the physical printing and 
binding of up to five (5) copies of the final report.  Additional copies can be produced upon request at the 
cost of DPC. 
 

Labor (hours) by Major Tasks  
 

Sports Tourism IndexTM (5 hours) 
 

Stakeholder Interviews/Sports Tourism Marketing Audit (25 hours) 
 

Strategic Plan Creation (25 hours) 
 

Final Report and Virtual Presentations (10 hours) 
 

30-Day Follow-Up (5 hours) 
    

Total Project Hours: 70 hours 
 

Billable Rate: $250/hour 
 

Total Cost for Labor: $17,500 (70 hours x $250 per hour) 
 

Potential Total Project Cost: $20,000 (inclusive of the “up to” direct costs and absorbed material 
costs as outlined above). 
 

 
Champions Circle (Optional): Beyond the 30-day execution window provided for in Stage 6, the 
Consultant Team also offers an ongoing Champions Circle consulting program in 12-month increments.  
Pricing and scope of service for this program can be presented to DPC upon request. $6,000 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

11 

Additional Terms 
 

• This agreement is for the term October 1, 2021 – November 30, 2021. 
• DPC agrees to pay the Consultant’s fees as outlined in the enclosed budget.  The fees are to be 

billed in two equal installments, the first upon the signing of this agreement, the second upon 
delivery of the final presentation and report.  Invoices are to be paid within ten (10) business days 
of receipt by DPC. 

• Additional work beyond what is outlined above would require a separate agreement between DPC 
and the Consultant. 

• This is a NON-EXCLUSIVE consulting agreement. 
• As communication is critical to success, the parties agree to a bi-weekly update either via phone or 

e-mail as requested by DPC. 
• This partnership can be extended by mutual agreement of the parties at any time. 

 
 
Conclusion 
 

Given this new reality we are all living in today, this is a watershed moment for DPC and the sports tourism 
stakeholders across the region.  While the arms race in the sports tourism industry is at an all-time high, we 
need to be strategic in how we set the community up for long-term success coming out of the current 
downturn.  In order to be relevant in this highly competitive space, destinations need to be highly focused, 
skilled, and creatively funded – more so today than ever before.   
 

Smart destinations sustain their efforts year over year through focused and aligned community-wide efforts.  
By working with the Huddle Up Group, DPC will be able to leverage our hands-on expertise in building 
strong and sustainable sports organizations.  We will provide the Destination Panama City team with a 
specific game plan to improve the area’s sports tourism tool kit, which will positively impact the community 
in multiple ways for years to come.  
 

Our team has the experience and knowledge you need to forge the future sports tourism vision for 
Destination Panama City.  We have a great passion for what lies ahead of you and we would love to help 
along the journey.  Thank you for your consideration of our proposal. 
  
Yours in Sport,  
 
 
 
Jon Schmieder 
Founder + CEO 
Huddle Up Group, LLC 
Jon@HuddleUpGroup.com 
 
602-369-6955 

mailto:Jon@HuddleUpGroup.com


 
CEO Performance Evaluation 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer Vigil 
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
10/12/2021 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Board should make a motion regarding merit increase / bonus for CEO Vigil based on CEO Evaluation 
Committee recommendations. 
 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 

      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 

Pursuant to CEO Vigil’s employment contract signed October 27, 2015, each year the Board is to select an 
evaluation committee “to meet with Vigil to evaluate her performance, discuss her performance of this Contract 
and consider cost of living and merit increases in Vigil’s salary”.   

 

Jennine Brown (Chairman), Nirav Banker (Vice Chairman), and Billy Rader (Board Member) completed CEO 
evaluations for CEO Vigil.    Evaluations have been attached for review. 

 

Also pursuant to the employment contract, “for each fiscal year Vigil is employed under this Contract she will be 
considered for a cost of living and merit increase not exceeding 10% of her then current salary based upon 
measurable performance criteria”.   

 
 
Attachment: 

• Vigil Evaluation – Completed by Chairman Jennine Brown 
• Vigil Evaluation – Completed by Vice Chairman Nirav Banker 
• Vigil Evaluation – Completed by Board Member Billy Rader 

 

 





























DESTINATION PANAMA CITY (PCCDC) 
PRESIDENT & CEO PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 
Purpose:  The purpose of evaluating the President & CEO is to look at the performance of the 

President & CEO during the evaluation period.  It is an opportunity for a better 
understanding of and greater appreciation for the expectations of the DPC BOARD. 

 
Format:  There are no perfect evaluation tools.  However, the evaluation should be a thoughtful, 

effective, sensitive, and positive process.   To some extent, evaluating the President & 
CEO also is an evaluation of the organization as a whole.  Therefore, please make 
comments about specific segments the organization as a whole as you may deem 
appropriate. 

 
Rating:  This evaluation consists of several categories that the President & CEO is involved with 

or has responsibility.  Specific job responsibilities are listed for each general area to be 
rated.   Following each category you are asked to indicate your assessment on the 
following scale: 

 
  Exceptional    (4)   
  This rating describes performance which consistently exceeds the expectations of the 

County Commission and is clearly superior in terms of quality and performance 
standards. 

 
  Exceeds Expectations  (3) 

This rating describes performance which routinely exceeds expectations of the County 
Commission and reflects a thorough and efficient effort. 
 
Meets Expectations  (2) 
This rating indicates fulfillment of the job requirements and expectations of the County 
Commission. 
 
Below Expectations  (1) 
This rating indicates marginal fulfillment of the County Commission’s expectations and 
shows a need for significant improvement. 
 
Each category also allows space for comments.  You are encouraged to make comments 
on each item and provide as much feedback as desired.  For ratings of “1”, please 
provide a suggested corrective action plan for the President & CEO in each category as 
rated.  The more feedback given, the greater the opportunity for meaningful discussion. 
 



A place for your assessment of the President & CEO’s overall rating is also provided, 
along with space for your comments and suggestions for improvement and 
commendations. 

 

I. Organizational Management and Leadership 
 

 Plans and organizes the work that goes 
into providing services established by 
the decisions of the DPC BOARD. 

 Evaluates and keeps up with current 
technology and professional 
development. 

 Selects, leads, directs and develops 
staff. 

 Keeps the DPC BOARD appropriately 
informed about organizational status 
and changes. 

 Delegates authority and responsibly to 
staff while retaining ultimate 
responsibility for staff performance. 

 Is knowledgeable of City, County, State 
and Federal laws and ordinances 
affecting DPC operations and ensures 
compliance. 

 Explores alternatives and presents well 
thought‐out and properly documented 
recommendations. 

 Provides appropriate support and 
assistance to the DPC BOARD. 

 Strives to create an environment that 
promotes innovation, accomplishment 
and accountability. 

 Takes responsibility for setting realistic 
objectives for the organization based on 
the goals of the DPC BOARD, the annual 
Program of Work and overall vision of 
the Tourism Study. 

 Knows when to act and when to defer 
action. 

 Has the capability and willingness to 
make hard decisions when required, 
and accepts responsibility for those 
decisions and those of subordinates. 
 

 
 
COMMENTS: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
AREA RATING:  Circle One 
 
4  Exceptional 
3  Exceeds Expectations 
2  Meets Expectations 
1  Below Expectations 

If anything, Jennifer is usually over prepared. As a Board Member, I am very pleased with
her organizational leadership and the manner in which she represents this Board and 
Destination Panama City.



II. Fiscal and Business Management  
 

 Plans, organizes and administers the 
adopted budget.   Ensures compliance 
with stautory requirements. 

 Plans, organizes and presents the 
annual budget with overall Media and 
Marketing Plan. 

 Prepares and provides periodic event &  
tourism economic impact reports. 

 Makes informed, reasoned, and 
responsible budgetary and financial 
recommendations and decisions. 

 Displays a clear understanding of the 
DPC’s financial resources and the 
priorities of the DPC BOARD. 

 Recommends a balanced budget 
consistent with established Bay County 
Commission goals and guidelines. 

 Effectively oversees the maintenance, 
preservation and operation of DPC 
facilities, buildings and equipment. 

 Plans, organizes and supervises most 
cost‐effective and economic utilization 
of human and fiscal resources. 

 Recommends priorities for human and 
fiscal resources. 

 Recommends priorities for the 
allocation of funds.  

 Works in conjunction with the Bay 
County TDC and the Clerk of Court to 
ensure ratification of DPC BOARD 
budget approval. 

 Generates creative ideas, campaigns 
and solutions that will solidify the City’s 
position as a tourist destination. 

 
 

COMMENTS: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
AREA RATING:  Circle One 
 
4  Exceptional 
3  Exceeds Expectations 
2  Meets Expectations 
1  Below Expectations 

   

In terms of fiscal management, it speaks volumes that through a catastrophic natural disaster
and a world wide pandemic that Jennifer had a strategic financial plan that allowed 
Destination Panama City to construct a new Visitor's Center, without taking on any debt 
while still executing successful marketing and public relations  campaigns.



III. Communication and Relationships with DPC BOARD 
 

 Maintains effective and timely 
communication, both verbal and 
written, with the DPC BOARD. 

 Maintains availability to elected 
officials, both personally and through 
designated staff. 

 Establishes and maintains a system of 
reporting of current DPC plans and 
activities. 

 Plans, organizes and submits materials 
for presentation to the DPC BOARD in 
clear, concise and comprehensive 
manner. 

 Avoids personality biases or 
partisanship issues. 

 Is sensitive to DPC BOARD concerns and 
priorities. 

 Responsive to inquiries and suggestions 
from DPC BOARD members, industry 
partners, and the general public. 

 Provides adequate expertise and 
guidance, recommendations and 
alternatives in policy‐making while 
respecting the integrity of the DPC 
BOARD as a body. 

 Responds equally to each member of 
the DPC BOARD and implements 
directives of the BOARD as a whole 
rather than individually.  
 

 
COMMENTS: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
AREA RATING:  Circle One 
 
4  Exceptional 
3  Exceeds Expectations 
2  Meets Expectations 
1  Below Expectations 

   

Jennifer continues to have excellent communication skills. Whether by email, text, or 
phone she keeps the Board members apprised of important information and up-to-date on 
issues. She routinely communicates with the public, tourism stakeholders, and visitors. 



IV. Community and Intergovernmental Relations 
 

 Effectively communicates DPC 
practices, policies and decisions to the 
public and others. 

 Appropriately participates in 
community and civic activities. 

 Establishes and maintains an image of 
the DPC to the Community that 
represents quality services and 
professionalism. 

 Willing to meet with citizens and 
community groups regarding their 
interests and concerns. 

 Possesses and promotes an attitude 
and feeling of helpfulness, courtesy and 
sensitivity to the public. 

 Communicates in a clear and unbiased 
manner on both special and routine 
events and issues. 

 Promptly responds to and addresses 
citizen inquiries and public concerns. 

 Maintains awareness of activities & 
initiatives in the City and other nearby 
areas that may relate to or affect the 
overall tourism draw to the County. 

 Designs, organizes and staffs official 
tourism Visitor’s Information Center(s). 

 Maintains effective working 
relationships with groups and other 
destination marketing organizations 
with which the City is involved or 
interfaces. 

 
COMMENTS: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
AREA RATING:  Circle One 
 
4  Exceptional 
3  Exceeds Expectations 
2  Meets Expectations 
1  Below Expectations 

   

Jennifer represents Destination Panama City very well with the City, Civic Organizations, 
tourism partners, and citizens. She provides factual unbiased information that both educates
and allows board members to make informed, conscientious decisions. 
She goes above and beyond making herself accessible to the board, partners, and citizens.



V. Personal and Professional Traits 
 

 Demonstrates composure, appearance 
and attitude consistent with an 
executive position. 

 Able to separate professional and 
personal lives. 

 Maintains personal integrity.  Actions 
and decisions reflect moral and ethical 
standards. 

 Viewed positively by others both inside 
and outside the organization. 

 Energetic and willing to spend 
necessary time to do a good job. 

 Unbiased in decision‐making and 
presents rational and interpersonal 
viewpoints based on facts and qualified 
opinions. 

 Understands the values, attitudes and 
goals of others. 

 Innovative and self‐motivated. 
 Values personal and professional 

development and endeavors to increase 
ability to serve and perform. 

 Builds cohesiveness in staff. 
 Effectively motivates the organization. 

 
 
 COMMENTS: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
AREA RATING:  Circle One 
 
4  Exceptional 
3  Exceeds Expectations 
2  Meets Expectations 
1  Below Expectations 

   

Jennifer effectively maintains a healthy separation of her personal and professional life. She 
has a stellar reputation within the community and the tourism industry. She also works endless
hours to make sure Destination Panama City is successful. 



VI. Overall Performance Rating 
 

4  Exceptional 
3  Exceeds Expectations 
2  Meets Expectations 
1  Below Expectations 

 
 

COMMENTS AND OBSERVATIONS: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
SUGGESTIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
COMMENDATIONS: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
________________________________    ________________________________ 
                                Date          Board Member 

Recommend 5% raise and 5% bonus.

Billy Rader10/7/2021 (via telephone meetign with JV)



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������

��� ��! �"�#!" �$" �
��#"�%#&�!'()*+,-.+,/-� 0.-.1.�2,+3 45675895:�;<;=



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������

��� �!" ���#"�$
#%�&' (



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


�

�� !"#$% �"� &'()&*+,-�./01-&)2,3 45678�9:;<�=><;:�?:=
9:;@A�B:CA?D><�;A�E:AC

:FG�H;ID�ID>�JKBBKH;A@�
=:FL>I;A@�KMN>?I;O>PQ 4R:;P>�:H:F>A>PP�KJ�S

:A:=:�T;IG�:P�:�<>PI;A
:I;KA�JKF�IF:O>B>FP�H;ID

�:A�
;AI>F>PI�;A�KCI<KKF�:?I

;O;I;>P
4UF;O>�?KAP;<>F:I;KA�

KJ�S:A:=:�T;IG�JKF�JCIC
F>�O:?:I;KAP

4U:I:�;A�ID;P�F>9KFI�;P�
IDFKC@D�VWX8W7Y78



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


�

�� !�"#$%�&'%$# ()*+),-.�/0**)12 34567895�:898;<=�<5>
�?@AB�CDEF�GDHIDE9J�K

7J<EJ8>F�<7�DKK7HILE;
5�E<;�

I6EHD6M�7NO>K<EP>�7Q�9>
J>6D<EJ9�DRD6>J>;;S 3:F;�5DP>�DL6>DFM�F>
LEP>6>F�TUVW�XYZZY[\�YX

]̂_̀Ỳ[\̀�<7�786�<D69>
<�

D8FE>JK>;�EJ�a>M�HD6a
><;�DJF�9>J>6D<>F�UTb

cde�fZYfg̀�h[�hi_�j_k̀
Yh_V

3l>;<EJD<E7J�CDJDHD�
GE<Mm;�J>R�PEF>7�K6>D<E

P>�5D;�N>>J�nY_j_o�[
n_̂�

Tpeq�hYX_̀V 3CDEF�r>D6K5�5D;�7P>6
�D�TsVstu�[n_̂vZZ�wxy

=�R>LL�DN7P>�<5>�N>JK5
HD6a�7Q�

z{|}=�L>F�NM�<5>�~DK<EPE
<E>;��DF�9678I��~45EJ9;

�r<8QQ�:K<EPE<E>;�<7�F7��
S



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


�

�� !�"#$%�&'%$# ()**+,�-+*.)�*)/) 01234256789::
4;<:=>42?:=0@

A4B9;� A49C:A49C @139
DEFGHIJKLMN� OLGHPQRSTUVWTXU

YYTYUWWZ[Y\
M]QM]Q

Î_QÈIKLMN� OLGHPQRaTWYbTbY
acTcbbWZaa\

M]QM]Q
dFefegI� hLiIF[[cTbaa

M]QM]QcUTV
[Sc[\

jQJIgFF̀� hLiIFacUTcWW
M]QM]QbaTS

UcSU\
0k0lm nopqros

stporuvwrqx
tnyorntnpx

z{|}�~���}��������
}�����������������}��

���������������������
����

����������� ¡����¢£¢
¤¥ ����������������� ���¦�§���̈�¦ ¦��� ���������©���§�� �������������ª«¥



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


�

�� !�"#$%�&'%$# ()**+,�-.+)/01+�)22+/
23�*0245)6

789:;<�:=>?:<@ABCD�E
8CC<=?

789:;<�=<98=F<ABCD�E
8CC<=?



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


�

�� !�"#$%�&'%$# ()**+,�-.+)/01+�)22+/
23�4)-+5667



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


�

�� !�"#$%�&'%$# ()*+�,-.*)/�+)0) 123456758597:
;<=>5??4@6?AB47C?

AD8E435@� FB9G?
E435@� E45H?E45H� 89I5J

:9>5?8597I4@6?
KLMNO� PQLRSTTULNTVWXYZWY[

VXWZX\W]Y[
VŴ_X]̀]ZaVW\X

[WYb̂Ŵ̂Zb]̀
\]aZZV̂

cSdUQSST[̂YWZ_b
YŴZZW[Z_XW\ZZ

]̀VZaVWXbZW]̂b
VYWẐ]]̀bXaZ

V[\V
DeD1fghijkhj

jlmhnjjhoom
ohikmjpjlqrhg

nshnlogrhnrlj
pogqnishsl

j
tuv�wxyz{y|v�zx�}vv�~

x}{z{�v��x�vyz|��{y��
v�}{zv�z����{w��y���{�vx

�wx�~�vz{xy���zv�
�x��x�{y��w��~�{�y�x~

z{�{��z{xy}�{y�����
t��v��vz{�vv}��|�{vyw

v��z�x|���}����v��{y��v
�w���{}��x�v�vy���v��

�{z��x|��}xw{���
wxyzvyz� t��{��}xw{���v��x�z}���

�v��vyv��zv���������{}
{zx���|{�v����v�{v�}��

�y|������|�|}z��
�wwx|yz{y���x������x��

�xz������v�{v�}�{y�z�v�
}��v�~v�{x��

t��{���xw{���w��~�{�y
}��|y���y|������v~zv�

�v��



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


�

�� !�"#$%�&'%$# ()*+�,-.*)/�.01)2*31�),
,12,



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&�'(&%$ )*+,�-.*/01�,*2* 34567�879:;49<=>94
??6@;?AB6CD?AE

FGHIJ�A8A
KLLMNOPQRST

USTRVWWSX
YXPZ[SYVS

E\EG]_̂̀ab
cab̀deeaf

Jf̂ghaJda
ijk�lmMmnoR�opO�qrs�tO

uvpOw�LxOt�SXZ�ukw�op
O�lxMY�qyq�zun�[SYU{R�

zp|vp�|kvtOunOw�}Out~oL
~wuoO�

�Ot�Lt�ukvO�ukw�Lmo�
Ot�Lt�|kM�KLLMNO�yu|w

��Outvp��Okvp�ut�nY
iqN|v��uvo|x|o}�ukw�lxM

Y�qyq�tO�u|kOw�vLkn|no
Oko��tL���utvp���mN}��

mo�wOx|uoOw�|k�lmMmno�o
L��uovp�

�Ot�Lt�ukvO�n|�|Nut�oL
��ukmut}Y�� iyLnn|�N}�uoot|�moOw�oL
�u�wOvtOunO�|k�nOunLku

N�otuxONR�|kvtOunOw�q��
j��vLkvOtknR�Lt�u�vL��

|kuo|Lk�L��
�Lop��nm��Lto|kM�wuou�

|n��tLx|wOw�Lk�opO�kO�o
�nN|wOY

i�On�|oO�op|n�vpukMOR
�T�Z�L��vN|v�n�tOnmNoOw�

|k��muN|o}�n|oO�x|n|on�un�n
OutvpOtn�vLko|kmO�oL�vL

��NOoO�KLLMNO�
lkuN}o|vn��Kl��vLkxOtn|

Lkn�� iSRVW��nOutvpOtn�n�Ok
o�V������|kmoOn�Lk�n|oO

R�ukw�TRUP��x|n|oOw�V�Lt
�����uMOnY

irpLmMp�Lmt�uwn�puxO
�nOOk�NOnn�wO�ukwR�otu�

�|v��tL��uwn�tO�u|kn�Ok
MuMOwY�������������������

 ¡¢�£¤�
�¥����¦�§�̈©ª«¬����

 ¡¢�£¤
®̄°±²³±́²̄®�µ®°¶³°·

¯̧¹®



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

�� !�"#$%�&'%$# ()*+�,-)./0�)/1*2*13 45�6785�955:�7�;<7=>
7?�=5@<5795�A:�A:B5<59B

�9A:@5�CA=DE>?FG�?AH5?F�A
CI7@B5=�JF�9579K:7?A

BF�
L�MNOPQ�@K:@5<:9R� STUV�WXTYZ[�Z\UZ]W�T̂V

�
Z_̂X̀YWU_̂W�aY_b�cde�

fgdhi
_̀XYT\\�jXkWUlX�lYTaaUZ

�aY_b�
cde�fgdhi WXTYZ[�ÛlXYXWl�a_Y�mT̂

TbT�
nUlo�kXpT̂�W[UalÛp�Ta

lXY�qr\o�
stu SXT]



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&�'(&%$ )*+,-.�,*/0�).*123�*0
)

456789:
;9<=>5



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#�$�#% � !�&'!(%")



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.�,/0�12+*23..�4+�

0,43
56789�:;�<=>?@=�8A�9=8

BA�:C�D98>=E=FAB�A7A89�
G@7E;

5H8AI7F89�>7FB?E=@JA
@8K=9�E=LI8�MNO 5PQRSQTUUV�WX�YZ[\]Û
T_̀a�W�YTb_]bS

5c8d7@�L8I9I=BJ@=eI7F
89�E=LI8�MCO 5PQRSQTUUV�f�YZ[\]ÛT
_g�W�YTb_]bS

5HI>h=�7?AL77@�E=LI
8�MiO 5PQRSQTUUV�j�YZ[\]ÛT
_

56789�i;�c8IFA8IF�8F�8
K=@8e=�E=LI8�@=98AI7FB

�k?89IAl�B>7@=�7G�mC�D7
IFAB�M7?A�7G�CnO���������������

����
7F�Ah=�op7FF=>A�qGG=>A

r�B>89=s�thI>h�E=8B?@=
B�A8@e=A�8?LI=F>=s�u=l�

E=BB8e=�
IF>9?BI7Fs�A7F=s�D@7EIF

=F>=s�8FL�8BB=ABv 5PQRSQTUUV�wxTQyST�zZ
y\]{|�U}RQT�R~��j��f���fX

�����������������������
������������������������

�����������������������
�������������������������

�������������������������
���������������������

��
������������������������

����������



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

�� !�"#$%"&�'"&(
# )*+,-*.�/*.01�231+*/

*45)�56�.15*



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.+/�0+/12�342,+0

+56*�67�/26+



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������


��

� !"�#$%&#'�(#')
$ *+,-.,/�0+-.1�*213+0

+,45 678797�:;<=�<>�6?8@7A
>B7� C>7D�<C;E FB?@@;8G�>H�<I?�JB??<�7
8D� FKC8;8G�>H�<I?�L>AM@



����������	
	
����������������

�����������
�������������

��� !�"#$


	DPC Agenda 101221
	AS - Approve Minutes
	DPC MINUTES 072721
	AS - Financial Statement
	CDC 2021.08.31 FS
	AS - TDT Revenue Reports
	TDC Monthly Analysis August 2021
	AS - Presentation Robin Malpass
	AS - Huddle Group - Sports Tourism Proposal
	SOUTH 390 RESERVE
	Destination Panama City Sports Tourism Project Proposal - Huddle Up Group
	AS CEO Performance Evaluation
	JBrown - Vigil Evaluation
	NBanker - Vigil Evaluation
	BRader - Vigil Evaluation
	DESPAN FY21 Campaign Reporting_9.2021

